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This is a 404 permitee required mitigations site. The conservation
easement anticipated a 4' foot wide boardwalk of unspecified length and
location. In 2019 the property was sold and the current landowners,
Bermuda Bay Owners Association Il, requested to expand this to a 6" wide
boardwalk in order to accommodate ADA needs as well as their design
wishes. This structure will specifically allow access the water in keeping
with the spirit of the easement itself. Only non motorized watercraft will
be used.

The owners have fully complied with NC DEQ DMS and Stewardship
Program requests to reduce their footprint by finding the shortest route
possible to accomplish their goals. The boardwalk footprint was reviewed
by the State Property office and the DEQ Stewardship Program who will
provide long term stewardship of the conservation easement associated
with this site. Included in this Adobe property portfolio are documents
related to this request. Additionally this footprint is now archived and
included on the infrastructure layer associated with the DEQ property geo-
database with all associated meta data.







From: Standridge, Billy W CIV USARMY CESAW (US)

To: Horton, Jeffrey

Cc: Brian Edlin; Hajnos, Edward A; Rice, Blane

Subject: [External] RE: 100124_Bermuda Bay (PRM), Dare County - Proposal to Impact Conservation Area
(UNCLASSIFIED)

Date: Tuesday, May 07, 2019 8:11:42 AM

CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless you verify. Send all suspicious email as
an attachment to report.spam@nc.gov<mailto:report.spam@nc.gov>

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED

Hi Jeff,

Thanks for opportunity to review the subject proposal. Based on the information provided, the Corps does not have
any objections to the modification of the boardwalk width from 4 feet to 6 feet in order to meet ADA requirements.

Thank you,
Billy

Billy W. Standridge

Regulatory Specialist

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Washington Regulatory Field Office
2407 W. 5th Street

Washington, NC 27889

(910) 251-4595

From: Horton, Jeffrey [mailto:jeffrey.horton@ncdenr.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 3, 2019 10:09 AM

To: Standridge, Billy W CIV USARMY CESAW (US) <Billy.W.Standridge@usace.army.mil>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] FW: 100124 Bermuda Bay (PRM), Dare County - Proposal to Impact Conservation
Area

Jeffrey Horton
Division of Mitigation Services

Department of Environmental Quality

Office - 919-707-8437

Cell - 919-218-3480
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1652 Mail Service Center
217 W. Jones Street

Raleigh, NC 27699-1652

NC DEQ DMS Property <Blockedhttps://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/mitigation-services/property>

Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the

North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.

From: Horton, Jeffrey

Sent: Friday, April 26, 2019 12:04 PM

To: Billy.W.Standrige@usace.army.mil

Cc: Brian Edlin <bedlin@jordanprice.com>; Hajnos, Edward A <edward.hajnos@ncdenr.gov>; Rice, Blane
<blane.rice@doa.nc.gov>

Subject: FW: 100124 Bermuda Bay (PRM), Dare County - Proposal to Impact Conservation Area

Billy,

This email is a follow up from our conversation last week regarding the Bermuda Bay permitee required mitigation
site which is located in Dare County just southwest of the Wright Memorial. Please find attached the request to
construct a six foot wide wooden boardwalk by the Bermuda Bay Owners Association II as presented by their
attorney Brian Edlin. You will also find attached a Google Earth file of the easement area, a PNG file that is a
snapshot of the reserved right verbiage taken directly from the recorded conservation easement and a map showing
the proposed location of the boardwalk as it relates to the conservation area and surrounding properties.

This proposal has followed our request process as outlined on the NC DEQ Stewardship Program "Planning Projects
Around Conservation Easement" web page; Blockedhttps://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/deq-administrative-
divisions/north-carolina-stewardship-program/planning-projects <Blockedhttps://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/deq-
administrative-divisions/north-carolina-stewardship-program/planning-projects> .

The conservation easement clearly anticipated this boardwalk (see attached PNG file). However, the proposed
boardwalk is two feet wider than anticipated in the easement language and this is to enable an ADA compliant
structure. The owners have fully complied with our request to reduce their footprint by finding the shortest route
possible to accomplish their goals. They have fulfilled our request and we see every reason to support the proposed







structure so long as it adheres to the CAMA guidelines. It has been reviewed by the State Property office and the
DEQ Stewardship Program who will likely end up overseeing the conservation easement associated with this site.
Both parties are included in this email.

Because this easement originated as a permit requirement we are consulting with you prior to allowing this request.
It appears to us as an appropriate use of the property as anticipated by the original easement language.

We respectfully request your review and affirmation of this proposed boardwalk. Your response will be kept in our
records.

Sincerely,

Jeff

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

From: Brian Edlin <bedlin@jordanprice.com <mailto:bedlin@jordanprice.com> >

Sent: Wednesday, April 17,2019 9:24 AM

To: Horton, Jeffrey <jeffrey.horton@ncdenr.gov <mailto:jeffrey.horton@ncdenr.gov> >

Cc: James Stenstrom <stenfred6810@gmail.com <mailto:stenfred6810@gmail.com> >; 'Steve Chronister'
<stevechronister@yahoo.com <mailto:stevechronister@yahoo.com> >; Lyndon Small <lyn@lsimarineobx.com
<mailto:lyn@lsimarineobx.com> >; Jurek, Jeff <jeff jurek@ncdenr.gov <mailto:jeff jurek@ncdenr.gov> >; Carver,
Yvonne <yvonne.carver@ncdenr.gov <mailto:yvonne.carver@ncdenr.gov> >

Subject: [External] Bermuda Bay, Dare County - Proposal to Impact Conservation Area (EMAIL 1 of 2)

CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless you verify. Send all suspicious email as
an attachment to report.spam@nc.gov <mailto:report.spam@nc.gov>

Jeff -

Thank you for your email on April 4, 2019 regarding the above matter. I am sending two emails. The first is a
proposal to impact the conservation area with various attachments. The proposal contains the detail for the proposed
pier/boardwalk over the conservation area. The second email just includes the attachments to the proposal, as well
as, the CAD drawings for the project in a DMG file as requested. Lyn Small will be the contractor and I have
copied him on this email, as well as, James Stenstrom and Steve Chronister - both of whom are on the Bermuda Bay
Board.

The Board is excited about the project and looks forward to your feedback on increasing the width of the pier from
the currently allowed 4' to 6'. Let me know what additional information you might need to process this request.
Thank you.

Brian S. Edlin, Attorney at Law

1951 Clark Avenue | P.O. Box 10669 | Raleigh, North Carolina 27605

919-831-4483 (Direct) | 919-828-2501 (Main) | 919-834-8447 (Fax) | bedlin@jordanprice.com
<mailto:bedlin@jordanprice.com>
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P Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This message and any files attached herewith are confidential and may contain privileged material for the sole use of
the intended recipient. Any unauthorized review, distribution, disclosure, copying, use, or dissemination, either
whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient of the message, please notify the sender
immediately by return e-mail or telephone (919-828-2501), delete the original message including the attachments,
and destroy all hard copies. If you are the intended recipient, please be aware that since e-mails can be altered
electronically, the integrity of this communication cannot be guaranteed.

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
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Prepared by: Jefftey J. Goebel, Jo
Returned to: GRANTEE

Price Wall Gray Jones & Carlton, PO Box 10669, Raleigh NC 27605

N

Brief description for the Index: WETLANDS CONSERVATION EASEMENT AREA —3.09 AC,

s

Fam.
\ - -
THIS GENERAL WARRANTY DEED, n\leﬁg this a day of April 2019, by and between
S ,
Y
GRANTOR O GRANTEE
BERMUDA BAY, LLC OO BERMUDA BAY OWNERS ASSOCIATION II
>
f
a North Carolina Limited Liability Company “& a North Carolina Non-Profit Corporation
®
30 Bellona Arsenal Road 'é P O Box 1807
Midlothian, Virginia 23113 s Nags Head, NC 27959

The desipnation Grantor and Grantse as used herein shall include said patties, their heirs, successors, and assigns, and
shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or ncuter as required-fy context,

WITNESSETH, that the Gramtor, for a valuable consideration paid b@uﬁ
c{,ge Grantee in fee simple, all that certain lot
Y

acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant, bargain and convey
or parcel of land situated in Dare County, North Carolina and more particular

BEING ALL THAT CERTAIN AREA CONSISTING OF 3.09 AC. BY 8

Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby
escribed as follows:

Y DESCRIBED AS “WETLANDS

CONSERVATION EASEMENT ARFA — 134,604 8.F, (3,09 AC.), EAST PO

ON OF P.LN, 07 988309 16 6646™

AS SHOWN ON PLAT ENTITLED “WETLAND CONSERVATION EASE \(’l‘, BERMUDA BAY, L.L.C.” AS

submitted electronically by "Jordan Price wall Gray Jones & car1t<;%
in compliance with North carolina statutes governing recordable doclments
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the pare County Register)of Deeds.

%\ Book 2294 Page 549
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RECORDED ON APRIL 2, 2007 IN PLAT CABINET G, SLIDE 378, DARE COUNTY REGISTRY,
C\REFERENCE TO WHICH IS HERBY MADE FOR A MORE PARTICIULAR DESCRIPTION.

o)

HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and appurtenances thereto belonging to
the@rantes in fee simple.

Andhthé Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor is seized of the premises in fee simple, has the right to convey
the say® in fee simple, that title is marketable and free of all encumbrances, and that Grantor will warrant and defend the
title agajhSt the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever except for the exceptions hereinafter stated, The property
convey ein is not the primary residence of the Grantor. The conveyance set forth in this deed is part of the witding up
of the Granter pursuant to N.C.G.8. §57D-6-07.

Title to the pm@ty hereinabove described is subject fo the following exceptions:
O
1. ALL RIGHTS OF WAY, EASEMENTS, COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS AND OTHER MATTERS OF

RECORD, {NCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS SET FORTH IN THAT
CERTAIN CONSERVATION EASEMENT RECORDED IN BOOK 1725, PAGE 30, DARE COUNTY

REGISTRY. O
2. 2019 AD VALWS AND ALL SUBSEQUENT YEARS TAXES.
3, ALL LOCAL, C STATE OR FEDERAL GOVERNMENT LAWS, ORDINANCES, RESTRICTIONS

OR REGULATIONS RELATIVE TO ZONING, SUBDIVISION OCCUPANCY, USE, CONSTRUCTION OR
DEVELOPMENT OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the tor has caused this instroment to be executed in its name by a duly authorized
officer, the day and year first aboveagritten.

GRANTOR: BERMUDA BAY, LLC\)“

Leroy Andetson Y@
ITS: MANAGER ' \/\

STATE/COMMONWEALTHOF _ \J" \f‘C\\ﬂQ\\ ,
COUNTY OF . \Gwmes, CV\"\«I C‘b\,L n@M
L)

State/Commonweaith aforesaid, certify that Lg

that he is Manager of Bermuda Bay, LLC and that he, being a
putposs and in the capacity stated therein. Witness my hand an

a Notary Public of the County and

rsonelly appeared before me this day and acknowledged

gatmzed to do so, executed the foregomg instrument for the
fficial stamp or seal, this 3 day of Aprli, 2019,

My Commission Expires: _ 3 I’% N }QD’:’S\.}

WEALTH OF VRGINIA

* COMMONWEAL

X'|_sv cOMWSSION EXPIRES AUG. 81, 2022
) COMMISSION ¥ T185740

"30 " JAN ANISSA BANKS

L&

o
OO
2N
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CONSERVATION EASEMENT

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
DARE COUNTY

SPO File Number 28-AAAD

Prepared by: Robert B. Hobbs, Jr., Attorney
Return to: Blane Rice, State Property Office
1321 Mail Service Center

Raleigh, NC 27699-1321

THIS CONSERVATION EASEMENT DEED, made this 3 day of April, 2007, by
BERMUDA BAY, L.L.C., a North Carolina limited liability company (“Grantor”), to the State
of North Carolina, (“Grantee”), whose mailing address is State of North Carolina, Department
of Administration, State Property Office, 1321 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1321.
The designations Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs,
successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine, or neuter as
required by context.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-214.8 et seq., the State
of North Carolina has established the Ecosystem Enhancement Program (formerly known as the
Wetlands Restoration Program) within the Department of Environment and Natural Resources
for the purposes of acquiring, maintaining, restoring, enhancing, creating and preserving wetland
and riparian resources that contribute to the protection and improvement of water quality, flood
prevention, fisheries, aquatic habitat, wildlife habitat, and recreational opportunities; and

WHEREAS, The State of North Carolina is qualified to be the Grantee of a Conservation
Easement pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 121-35; and
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WHEREAS, the Ecosystem Enhancement Program in the Department of Environment
and Natural Resources has approved acceptance of this instrument; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Environment and Natural Resources, the North Carolina
Department of Transportation and the United States Army Corps of Engineers, Wilmington
District entered into a Memorandum of Agreement, (MOA) duly executed by all parties in
Greensboro, NC on July 22, 2003. This MOA recognizes that the Ecosystem Enhancement
Program is to provide for compensatory mitigation by effective protection of the land, water and
natural resources of the State by restoring, enhancing and preserving ecosystem functions; and

WHEREAS, the acceptance of this instrument for and on behalf of the State of North
Carolina was granted to the Department of Administration by resolution as approved by the
Governor and Council of State adopted at a meeting held in the City of Raleigh, North Carolina,
on the 8th day of February 2000; and

WHEREAS, Grantor owns in fee simple certain real property situated, lying, and being
in Atlantic Township, Dare County, North Carolina (the "Property”), and being more
particularly described as that certain parcel of land conveyed to the Grantor by Deed dated July
23, 2004 and filed in Book 1578, Page 351, Dare County Registry; and

WHEREAS, Grantor is willing to grant a Conservation Easement over the herein
described areas of the Property, thereby restricting and limiting the use of the included areas of
the Property to the terms and conditions and purposes hereinafter set forth, and Grantee is willing
to accept such Conservation Easement. This Conservation Easement shall be for the protection
and benefit of the waters of Colington Creek.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms, conditions, and
restrictions hereinafter set forth, Grantor unconditionally and irrevocably hereby grants and
conveys unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever and in perpetuity, a Conservation
Easement of the nature and character and to the extent hereinafter set forth, over a described area
of the Property, referred to hereafter as the “Easement Area”, for the benefit of the people of
North Carolina, and being all of the tract of land more particularly described as follows:

All that certain piece or parcel of land located in the Town of Kill Devil Hills,
Atlantic Township, Dare County, North Carolina, more particularly described as
follows:

The beginning point is located as follows: Beginning at a concrete monument on
the southern right-of-way line of Ocean Bay Boulevard, said concrete monument
being shown as a control corner on plat of Sunset Bay filed in Plat Cabinet F,
Slide 247, Dare County Registry; said concrete monument also being located
South 52 degrees 31 minutes 46 seconds West 302.48 feet from a p.k. nail at the
centerline of the intersection of Baum Bay Drive and Ocean Bay Boulevard;
thence along the southern right-of-way line of Ocean Bay Boulevard, South 61

DN
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degrees 30 minutes 33 seconds West 21.46 feet to a point, BEING THE PLACE
AND POINT OF BEGINNING.

THENCE FROM SAID BEGINNING POINT, South 23 degrees 15 minutes 19
seconds East 10.28 feet; thence South 31 degrees 15 minutes 43 seconds East
29.35 feet to a point; thence North 38 degrees 09 minutes 13 seconds East 66.00
feet to a point; thence South 12 degrees 35 minutes 41 seconds East 34.84 feet to
a point; thence South 19 degrees 38 minutes 09 seconds West 52.88 feet to a
point; thence South 06 degrees 29 minutes 39 seconds East 55.98 feet to a point;
thence South 24 degrees 47 minutes 34 seconds West 44.03 feet to a point; thence
South 00 degrees 48 minutes 25 seconds West 58.11 feet to a point; thence South
20 degrees 21 minutes 12 seconds West 34.37 feet to a point; thence South 15
degrees 48 minutes 32 seconds East 48.50 feet to a point; thence South 32 degrees
23 minutes 15 seconds West 55.48 feet to a point; thence South 49 degrees 32
minutes 56 seconds East 55.25 feet to a point; thence South 16 degrees 54
minutes 49 seconds West 107.00 feet to a point; thence South 63 degrees 20
minutes 08 seconds East 11.99 feet to a point; thence South 17 degrees 29
minutes 46 seconds West 29.28 feet a point; thence South 35 degrees 25 minutes
46 seconds East 29.61 feet to a point; thence South 08 degrees 58 minutes 08
seconds West 39.75 feet to a point; thence South 81 degrees 48 minutes 04
seconds East 34.63 feet to a point; thence North 18 degrees 53 minutes 49
seconds East 68.63 feet to a point; thence South 15 degrees 56 minutes 43
seconds East 53.52 feet to a point; thence South 04 degrees 16 minutes 55
seconds West 54.83 feet to a point; thence South 55 degrees 51 minutes 53
seconds East 47.69 feet to a point; thence South 43 degrees 16 minutes 53
seconds East 86.52 feet to a point; thence South 45 degrees 47 minutes 58
seconds West 37.45 feet to a point; thence South 78 degrees 03 minutes 35
seconds East 34.12 feet to a point; thence South 29 degrees 13 minutes 55
seconds East 24.00 feet to a point; thence South 51 degrees 48 minutes 31
seconds West 31.76 feet to a point; thence South 88 degrees 28 minutes 14
seconds East 31.55 feet to a point; thence South 36 degrees 41 minutes 24
seconds East 34.95 feet to a point located in the northern line of property now or
formerly owned by the Town of Kill Devil Hills; thence along the northern line of
the Town of Kill Devil Hills, South 61 degrees 29 minutes 58 seconds West
117.60 feet to a point; thence North 28 degrees 30 minutes 02 seconds West
836.45 feet to a point; thence North 61 degrees 30 minutes 33 seconds East
294.19 feet to the place and point of beginning, and being a parcel of land
containing 134,604 square feet (3.09 acres), as shown on survey entitled, in part,
"Wetland Conservation Easement, Bermuda Bay L.L.C.," by W. C. Owen, P.L.S.,
surveyor’s certificate dated October 6, 2006, and recorded in Plat Cabinet G,
Slide 378, Dare County Registry, reference which is hereby made for a more
particular description of the property herein conveyed.
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Being a portion of the same property conveyed to Grantor by Deed dated July 23,
2004 and filed in Book 1578, Page 351, Dare County Registry.

The purposes of this Conservation Easement are to maintain, restore, enhance, create and
preserve wetland and/or riparian resources in the Easement Area that contribute to the protection
and improvement of water quality, flood prevention, fisheries, aquatic habitat, wildlife habitat,
and recreational opportunities; to maintain permanently the Easement Area in its natural
condition, consistent with these purposes; and to prevent any use of the Easement Area that will
significantly impair or interfere with these purposes. To achieve these purposes, the following
conditions and restrictions are set forth:

I. DURATION OF EASEMENT

This Conservation Easement shall be perpetual. It is an easement in gross, runs with the
land, and is enforceable by Grantee against Grantor, their personal representatives, heirs,
successors, and assigns, lessees, agents, and licensees.

II. GRANTOR RESERVED USES AND RESTRICTED ACTIVITIES

The Easement Area shall be restricted from any development or usage that would impair
or interfere with the purposes of this Conservation Easement. Unless expressly reserved as a
compatible use herein, any activity in, or use of, the Easement Area by the Grantor is prohibited
as inconsistent with the purposes of this Conservation Easement. Any rights not expressly
reserved hereunder by the Grantor have been acquired by the Grantee. The following specific
uses are prohibited, restricted, or reserved as indicated:

A. Recreational Uses. Grantor expressly reserves the right to undeveloped
recreational uses, including hiking, bird watching, hunting and fishing, and access to the
Easement Area for the purposes thercof. Usage of motorized vehicles in the Easement Area is
prohibited, except as they are used exclusively for management, maintenance, or stewardship
purposes, and on existing trails, paths or roads.

B. Educational Uses. The Grantor reserves the right to engage in and permit others
to engage in educational uses in the Easement Area not inconsistent with this Conservation
Easement, and the right of access to the Easement Area for such purposes including organized
educational activities such as site visits and observations. Educational uses of the property shall
not alter vegetation, hydrology or topography of the site.

C. Vegetative Cutting. Except as related to the removal of non-native plants,
diseased or damaged trees, and vegetation that obstructs, destabilizes or renders unsafe the
Easement Area to persons or natural habitat, and except as to the construction, use, maintenance
and replacement of the boardwalk shown on the survey entitled "Wetland Conservation
Easement, Bermuda Bay L.L.C.," by W. C. Owen, P.L.S., surveyor’s certificate dated October 6,
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2006, and recorded in Plat Cabinet G, Slide 378, Dare County Registry, over and across the
Easement Area, all cutting, removal, mowing, harming, or destruction of any trees and
vegetation in the Easement Area is prohibited.

D. Industrial, Residential and Commercial Uses. All are prohibited in the
Easement Area.

E. Agricultural Use. All agricultural uses within the Easement Area including any
use for cropland, waste lagoons, or pastureland are prohibited.

F. New Construction. There shall be no building, facility, mobile home, antenna,
utility pole, tower, or other structure constructed or placed in the Easement Area, except for the
construction, use, maintenance and replacement of a boardwalk over and across the Easement
Area as shown on the survey entitled "Wetland Conservation Easement, Bermuda Bay L.L.C.,"
by W. C. Owen, P.L.S., surveyor’s certificate dated October 6, 2006, and recorded in Plat
Cabinet G, Slide 378, Dare County Registry. The boardwalk must be no more than four feet
wide.

G. Roads and Trails. There shall be no construction of roads, trails, walkways, or
paving in the Easement Area. Existing roads or trails located in the Easement Area may be
maintained by Grantor in order to minimize runoff, sedimentation and for access to the interior
of the Property for management, maintenance, stewardship purposes, or undeveloped
recreational and educational uses of the Easement Area. Existing roads, trails or paths may be
maintained with loose gravel or permanent vegetation to stabilize or cover the surfaces.

H. Signs. No signs shall be permitted in the Easement Area except interpretive signs
describing restoration activities and the conservation values of the Easement Area, signs
identifying the owner of the Property and the holder of the Conservation Easement, signs giving
directions, or signs prescribing rules and regulations for the use of the Easement Area may be
allowed.

I. Dumping or Storing. Dumping or storage of soil, trash, ashes, garbage, waste,
abandoned vehicles, appliances or machinery, or other material in the Easement Area is
prohibited.

J. Grading, Mineral Use, Excavation, Dredging. There shall be no grading,
filling, excavation, dredging, mining, or drilling; no removal of topsoil, sand, gravel, rock, peat,
minerals, or other materials.

K. Water Quality and Drainage Patterns. There shall be no diking, draining,
dredging, channeling, filling, leveling, pumping, impounding or diverting, causing, allowing or
permitting the diversion of surface or underground water. No altering or tampering with water
control structures or devices, or disruption or alteration of the restored, enhanced, or created
drainage patterns. All removal of wetlands, polluting or discharging into waters, springs, seeps,

-5







/ I" I||I m‘iill "I "II' II" |I| 6217:
Page: . of 9
' ||I|" “III ""l ||I|I II 04/04/2007 Q4:43P

or wetlands, or use of pesticide or biocides is prohibited. In the event of an emergency
interruption or shortage of all other water sources, water from within the Easement Area may
temporarily be used for good cause shown as needed for the survival of livestock and agricultural
production.

L. Subdivision and Conveyance. No further subdivision, partitioning, or dividing
of the Easement Area is allowed. Unless agreed to by the Grantee in writing, any future
conveyance of the Easement Area and the rights as conveyed herein shall be as a single block of
property. Any future conveyance of the remaining fee simple rights shall be subject to this
Conservation Easement. Grantor agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, that in the event it
transfers the Property, or any portion thereof, such transfer is subject to the Grantee’s right of
ingress, egress, and regress over and across the Property to the Easement Area for the purposes
set forth herein.

M. Development Rights. All development rights are removed from the Easement
Area and shall not be transferred.

N. Disturbance of Natural Features. Any change, disturbance, alteration or
impairment of the natural features of the Easement Area or any intentional introduction of non-
native plants, trees and/or animal species by Grantor is prohibited, except as expressly provided
otherwise by this Conservation Easement.

The Grantor may request permission to vary from the above restrictions for good cause
shown, provided that any such request is consistent with the purposes of this Conservation
Easement. The Grantor shall not vary from the above restrictions without first obtaining written
approval from the N.C. Ecosystem Enhancement Program, whose mailing address is 1652 Mail
Services Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1652.

III. GRANTEE RESERVED USES

A. Ingress, Egress, Regress and Inspection. The Grantee, its employees and
agents, successors and assigns, receive the perpetual right of general ingress, egress, and regress
to the Easement Area over the Property at reasonable times to undertake any activities to restore,
manage, maintain, enhance, and monitor the wetland and riparian resources of the Easement
Area, in accordance with restoration activities or a long-term management plan. Unless
otherwise specifically set forth in this Conservation Easement, the rights granted herein do not
include or establish for the public any access rights.

B. Restoration Activities. These activities include planting of trees, shrubs and
herbaceous vegetation, installation of monitoring wells, utilization of heavy equipment to grade,
fill, and prepare the soil, modification of the hydrology of the site, and installation of natural and
manmade materials as needed to direct in-stream, above ground, and subterraneous water flow.
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IV. ENFORCEMENT AND REMEDIES

A. Enforcement. To accomplish the purposes of this Conservation Easement,
Grantee is allowed to prevent any activity within the Easement Area that is inconsistent with the
purposes of this Easement and to require the restoration of such areas or features of the Easement
Area that may have been damaged by such activity or use. Upon any breach of the terms of this
Conservation Easement by Grantor, their successors or assigns, that comes to the attention of the
Grantee, the Grantee shall, except as provided below, notify the Grantor, their successors or
assigns in writing of such breach. The Grantor shall have ninety (90) days after receipt of such
notice to correct the conditions constituting such breach. If the breach remains uncured after
ninety (90) days, the Grantee may enforce this Conservation Easement by appropriate legal
proceedings including damages, injunctive and other relief. The Grantee shall also have the
power and authority, consistent with its statutory authority: (a) to prevent any impairment of the
Easement Area by acts which may be unlawful or in violation of this Conservation Easement; (b)
to otherwise preserve or protect its interest in the Property; or (c) to seek damages from any
appropriate person or entity. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee reserves the immediate
right, without notice, to obtain a temporary restraining order, injunctive or other appropriate
relief if the breach of the term of this Conservation Easement is or would irreversibly or
otherwise materially impair the benefits to be derived from this Conservation Easement. The
Grantor and Grantee acknowledge that under such circumstances damage to the Grantee would
be irreparable and remedies at law will be inadequate. The rights and remedies of the Grantee
provided hereunder shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other rights and remedies
available to Grantee in connection with this Conservation Easement.

B. Inspection. The Grantee, its employees and agents, successors and assigns, have
the right, with reasonable notice, to enter the Easement Area over the Property at reasonable
times for the purpose of inspection to determine whether the Grantor, their successors or assigns
are complying with the terms, conditions and restrictions of this Conservation Easement.

C. Acts Beyond Grantor’s Control. Nothing contained in this Conservation
Easement shall be construed to entitle Grantee to bring any action against Grantor, their
successors or assigns, for any injury or change in the Easement Area caused by third parties,
resulting from causes beyond the Grantor’s control, including, without limitation, fire, flood,
storm, and earth movement, or from any prudent action taken in good faith by the Grantor under
emergency conditions to prevent, abate, or mitigate significant injury to life, damage to property
or harm to the Property resulting from such causes.

D. Costs of Enforcement. Beyond regular and typical monitoring, any costs
incurred by Grantee in enforcing the terms of this Conservation Easement against Grantor, their
successors or assigns, including, without limitation, any costs of restoration necessitated by
Grantor’s acts or omissions in violation of the terms of this Conservation Easement, shall be
borne by Grantor.
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E. No Waiver. Enforcement of this Easement shall be at the discretion of the
Grantee and any forbearance, delay or omission by Grantee to exercise its rights hereunder in the
event of any breach of any term set forth herein shall not be construed to be a waiver by Grantee.

V. MISCELLANEOUS

A. This instrument sets forth the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
Conservation Easement and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, understandings or
agreements relating to the Conservation Easement. If any provision is found to be invalid, the
remainder of the provisions of the Conservation Easement, and the application of such provision
to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is found to be invalid, shall not be
affected thereby.

B. Any notices shall be sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested
to the parties at their addresses shown above or to other address(es) as either party establishes in
writing upon notification to the other.

C. Grantor shall notify Grantee in writing of the name and address and any party to
whom the Property or any part thereof is to be transferred at or prior to the time said transfer is
made. Grantor further agrees to make any subsequent lease, deed, or other legal instrument by
which any interest in the Property is conveyed subject to the Conservation Easement herein
created.

D. The Grantor and Grantee agree that the terms of this Conservation Easement shall
survive any merger of the fee and easement interests in the Property or any portion thereof.

E. This Conservation Easement may be amended, but only in a writing signed by all
parties hereto, and provided such amendment does not affect the qualification of this
Conservation Easement or the status of the Grantee under any applicable laws, and is consistent
with the purposes of the Conservation Easement.

F. The parties recognize and agree that the benefits of this Conservation Easement
are in gross and assignable provided, however, that the Grantee hereby covenants and agrees,
that in the event it transfers or assigns this Conservation Easement, the organization receiving the
interest will be a qualified holder under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 121-34 et seq. and § 170¢h) of the
Internal Revenue Code, and the Grantee further covenants and agrees that the terms of the
transfer or assignment will be such that the transferee or assignee will be required to continue in
perpetuity the conservation purposes described in this document.

VI. QUIET ENJOYMENT
Grantor reserves all remaining rights accruing from ownership of the Property, including

the right to engage in or permit or invite others to engage in only those uses of the Easement
Area that are expressly reserved herein, not prohibited or restricted herein, and are not

-8-
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inconsistent with the purposes of this Conservation Easement. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, the Grantor expressly reserves to the Grantor, and the Grantor's invitees and
licensees, the right of access to the Easement Area, and the right of quiet enjoyment of the
Easement Area.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said rights and easements perpetually unto the State of
North Carolina for the aforesaid purposes.

AND Grantor covenants that Grantor is seized of said premises in fee and has the right to
convey the permanent Conservation Easement herein granted; that the same are free from
encumbrances and that Grantor will warrant and defend title to the same against the claims of all
persons whomsoever.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set his hand and seal, the day
and year first above written.

GRANTOR:

BERMUDA BAY, LL.C., a North Carolina limited
liability comp.

By: // (SEAL)

i M 550 t6, Manager
NORTH CAROLINA /
@@M COUNTY

I, VAwcy L ENGLE | Notary Public, certify that David S. Russotto personally
came before me this day and acknowledged that he is Manager of Bermuda Bay, L.L.C., a
limited liability company and that he, as Manager, being authorized to do so, executed the
foregoing on behalf of the limited liability company.

Witness my hand and official seal, this the & "‘ﬂday of /’Zéé@m
2007 . ’

(AFFIX NOTARY SEAL) %Mo?/% /Zm?)/&

Notary Public ’
Notary's printed or typed name:_ AJANC, (¢ (a6l

My commission expires: b / 4 5740//

QQ\\Q \( ENG,//,//

EC

=  NOTARY  Z

= pUBLIC = -9-
///4705 *f\\\
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